1984

The State of Utah v. Ronald Lemoyne Kelly : Brief of Appellant

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE CASE

The Appellant, Ronald Lemoyne Kelly, appeals from his conviction for the offense of Criminal Homicide, Murder in the First Degree, a Capital Offense, in violation of Utah Code Annotated §76-5-202(1)(d) (1953 as amended), in the Third Judicial District Court, in and for Salt Lake County, State of Utah, the Honorable Peter F. Leary, Judge, presiding.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The Appellant was charged by Information with one count of Criminal Homicide, Murder in the First Degree, a Capital Offense, with certain multiple alleged aggravating circumstances. At the Preliminary Examination held on April 5 and 6 of 1982, all but two aggravating circumstances were dismissed. The two aggravating circumstances not dismissed, but bound over, were that the killing

took place, "while the actor was engaged in the commission of, or attempting to commit rape and/or aggravated sexual assault."

On May 5, 1983, after approximately four weeks of trial, the court found Mr. Kelly guilty of the Criminal Homicide, Murder in the First Degree, and imposed the sentence of life imprisonment due to the court's finding that the death penalty was not appropriate under the circumstances of this case. The Defendant, Mr. Kelly, was sentenced to life imprisonment and committed forthwith.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The Appellant seeks reversal of the judgment of guilt rendered by the trial court at the guilt phase of the trial to the offense of Criminal Homicide, Murder in the First Degree, a Capital Offense, and a dismissal of the charge.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

The Appellant/Defendant, Ronald Lemoyne Kelly, was out in the evening hours of February 9, 1982, with friends at several locations. At approximately 1:30 a.m. of February 10, 1982, Mr. Kelly met up with four individuals outside of the Caladonia Apartments located on the northwest corner of Sixth South and Fifth East, Salt Lake City, Utah. Mr. Kelly requested these friends, among them a native Venezuelan nick-named "Tido," to accompany Mr. Kelly to the apartment house located at 605 South 500 East in order for Mr. Kelly to use the telephone in one of the apartments located there belonging to a Darla Cates, a close personal friend of Mr. Kelly's. All of the friends declined to accompany Mr. Kelly and they parted company with Mr. Kelly at that time.

At approximately 3:30 a.m., February 10, 1982, two people living directly below the deceased, Carla Taylor, heard what they believed to be a scream and some other noises emitting from the apartment of the victim, Carla Taylor. All was quiet when they heard footsteps descending the common area stairs from the apartments upstairs and the door to the outside front porch open and shut. These two people, Elizabeth Langford and Clark Campbell testified that they peeked out of their front room window that was covered with two sets of curtains to see a man, dark in coloration, wearing a dark ski park and gloves. Their vision was somewhat limited due to the nature of their observation and the fact that the light which normally lightens the porch area of the converted old home was not on.

Even though Mr. Campbell did not want to get involved in a believed dispute between a boyfriend and the victim, Ms. Langford finally prevailed on him to put on his tennis shoes and go across the street to call the police, anonymously, from a public pay phone.

Officer Frank Hatton-ward of the Salt Lake Police Department was dispatched to the address of 605 South 500 East, Salt Lake City, Utah, and proceeded into the apartment building, up the common stairway and knocked on the door of the one of two upstairs apartment doors belonging to the victim, Carla Taylor. Receiving no answer to the officer's request for entry he tried the door and found it to be unlocked. As the officer opened the door to the victim's apartment all lights were off inside and so

with the aid of a flashlight, the officer illuminated the inside of the apartment and observed the body of the victim in the front living room portion of the apartment. Officer Hatton-ward determined that the victim was dead and had a 14-inch kitchen-type knife in her chest and a toothbrush inserted in her vagina, which was exposed.

After a quick search of the apartment, the officer found three possible entrances into the apartment; the front door by which he had entered, which was unlocked, a back door leading to a rear parking area that was partially open but secured with a chair, and a doorway leading from the victim's apartment to the apartment of Darla Cates who lived with a black man by the name of Jerome Thornton.

The officer located the two witnesses, Ms. Langford, and Mr. Campbell, and after learning that the man they saw had left on foot, the officer searched only the front portion of the apartment house and found what they believed to be footprints leaving the apartment house. Apparently the officer was never told that in Mr. Campbell's unsuccessful attempt at aiding the victim, he too had left the apartment house and transversed the street wearing tennis shoes to call the police.

The prints the police chose to follow, although intermittent, lead them to the apartment house of the Appellant, Mr. Kelly, (T. 201) and upon demanding entry, Mr. Kelly, clothed only in his underwear was confronted with no less than three uniformed police officers who immediately began to ask his whereabouts on the morning in question.

Detective Farnsworth of the Salt Lake Police Department was the first to enter the Appellant's home with Mr. Kelly still standing in his underwear. Prior to any Miranda warning, Detective Farnsworth demanded to know if Mr. Kelly had "killed anyone tonight," or "knifed anyone tonight." Mr. Kelly responded, "Are you serious?" (T. 209).

Detective Farnsworth, who had followed some intermittent prints in the snow to the Appellant's residence had received two conflicting descriptions of a suspect. The first description was of a black male adult, wearing a black or navy coat with a red stripe. The second description was of a white male adult, wearing the same coat as described above. It was this second description which Detective Farnsworth was working with when he stood on the porch of the Appellant's home and confronted the Appellant, a black man in his undershorts.

As he entered the Appellant's residence, Officer Farnsworth observed a ski parka on the couch, royal blue in color with beige shoulders and a red stripe in a v-shaped pattern (T.198). Officer Farnsworth again told Mr. Kelly that he was investigating a homicide and that he had followed a set of footprints to his house. He asked Mr. Kelly if he had been out during the night and what shoes had he been wearing. The Defendant went to the bedroom, followed by the officer (T.195), and a pair of shoes was seen by the officer. Officer Farnsworth seized the shoes without a warrant (T.199). Officer Bernard entered the Defendant's residence at this time. He did not request permission to enter nor was any permission given by Mr. Kelly. Officer Martin came

into the residence without requesting permission to enter either. Officer Farnsworth then read the Defendant his Miranda rights. Defendant said he was familiar with the Miranda rights. Officer Farnsworth asked him if he wished to answer any questions and the Defendant said, "I don't know." Officer Farnsworth told him that was not the right answer (T. 176) and said "Do you want to answer questions or don't you?" The Defendant replied, "Well, I don't know, it depends" (PHT 115). Officer Farnsworth said, "Well let me ask you again. We are investigating a homicide, a murder. It is a serious offense. We followed some footprints here and you have shown me some shoes and those were the same footprints I have been following. Were you at the house tonight?" The Defendant did not answer that question. Then Officer Farnsworth asked the Defendant what clothes he was wearing. The Defendant indicated a black shirt, black pants, and two pairs of socks. The officer seized all these clothes and informed the Defendant that he would have to come with him to speak to detectives in regards to the homicide (T. 180). Sargent Martin and Captain Bernard then checked the apartment "for other pesons." Sargent Martin found a pair of gloves on the bathroom floor. He asked the Defendant if he had worn them that night and the Defendant said he had. The gloves were seized and the coat in the front room was also seized. At approximately 4:31 a.m. the Defendant was put in the back of a police car. Officer Bernard stayed at Mr. Kelly's residence "securing it and showed the video technician, Mr. Cowley, what needed to

be taped." At 6:50 a.m. the front room was taped, as well as the two purses. Detective Abbot was contacted at 6:50 a.m. also, and assigned to secure a search warrant for 637 Brixten Court. A search warrant was served at 9:30 a.m. The return of that warrant containing a list of what property was seized is attached hereto. (See Appendix A.)

At the trial of this matter, Officer Fransworth testified that the Defendant did not give consent to search his residence or to seize any of his property. Ronald Kelly remained in various police cars from 4:30 a.m. until he was later taken to the Metropolitan Hall of Justice to be interrogated. Before that interrogation the Defendant was asked a number of questions by police officers while in police cars. Upon arriving at the Metropolitan Hall of Justice he was interrogated by Detective Chapman from 5:25 a.m. to 7:55 a.m. This interrogation was recorded and has been transcribed by the police department.

During this interview with Detective Chapman, Appellant stated that he did indeed go over to the apartment complex located at 605 South 500 East. Appellant went on to state that he went upstairs to request of Darla's boyfriend, Jerome Thornton, the use of the phone to call a taxi cab to take him home due to the stormy weather. The Appellant went on to explain that when he got to the front door, and rang the bell, Jerome Thornton never came to the door. He left down the stairs, paused at the front porch area to zip up his coat and put his gloves on and then walked home.

It was later determined that the apartment of Darla Gates was directly across from the victim's apartment and that they were

attached by a common hallway used by all, but also by a passageway that was only accessible by the two apartments of Darla Cates and the victim. It was also determined that on the night of the murder, Darla Cates had left and gone to Idaho and Jerome Thornton was living alone in the adjoining apartment of the victim, Carla Taylor. The only way to lock the connecting door between these two apartments was from inside Jerome Thornton's apartment. The door on the victim's apartment previously had been broken by the victim when she left her keys inside her apartment (T.223, 224).

The victim died of multiple stab wounds to the chest (T.339). Three hairs were found on the right buttocks of the victim, one of which was determined to be negroid pubic hair having characteristic similar to those hairs taken from the pubic region of the Appellant (T.558). Testimony showed that Appellant, prior to February 10, 1982, had been in the victim's apartment. The black man living across the hall had also been in the victim's apartment prior to February 10 (T.151, 152).

The Appellant was arrested at his home in the early morning hours of February 10, 1982, and brought to jail after a lengthy interrogation period. He was charged with First Degree Murder and was subsequently convicted of this offense, and from this conviction he now takes this appeal.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

AS THERE WAS NO PROBABLE CAUSE TO ARREST THE
DEFENDANT WHEN THE POLICE ENTERED HIS RESIDENCE,
THERE WAS NO PROBABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE THAT THE
DEFENDANT'S SHOES WERE EVIDENCE OF A CRIME,

NO LEGAL RIGHT TO FOLLOW THE DEFENDANT TO HIS BEDROOM AND THE SUBSEQUENT SEIZURE OF THE DEFENDANT'S SHOES AND OTHER CLOTHING WAS ILLEGAL.

Without probable cause to arrest the Appellant, Detective Farnsworth had no legal right to follow the Appellant to his bedroom. The Appellant had consented to Officer Farnsworth's entry into his front room, he did not consent to the officer's following him to his bedroom (T. 195). The U.S. Supreme Court has held that mere acquiescence to perceived police authority will not support a search based on consent regardless of lack of overt coercion. Bumper v. North Carolina, 391 U.S. 543, 20 L.Ed.2d 797, 88 S.Ct. 1788 (1968). Even if Officer Farnsworth had had a right to be in the Appellant's bedroom and therefore had a legal plain view of these shoes, a plain view seizure is limited to items that are clearly incriminating. United States v. Jackson, 576 F.2d 749 (8th Cir. 1978). The law requires a nexus between an item to be seized and criminal behavior and the probable cause necessary to seize a particular item must be examined in terms of "cause to believe that the evidence sought will aid in a particular apprehension or conviction." Warden v. Hayden, 387 U.S. 294, 307, 18 L. Ed.2d.782, 793, 87 S.Ct. 1642 (1967). Coolidge v. New Hampshire, 403 U.S. 443, 446, 29 L.Ed.2d 564, 583, 91 S.Ct. 2022 (1971), required that the incriminating nature of articles seized must be immediately apparent.

The shoes taken from the Appellant's bedroom were not obviously contraband or weapons. Their connection with the homicide Officer Farnsworth was investigating was based solely on the

Appellant's pre-Miranda admission that he had been wearing them that night. Blood was not observed on the shoes until well after they had been seized. The pattern on the bottom was not observed until after they had been seized.

Thus, without probable cause to arrest the Appellant, these shoes were illegally observed and illegally seized. In addition, if the seizure of the shoes is found to be illegal, they cannot become the basis for probable cause necessary to arrest the Appellant and seize other items of his clothing (his pants and gloves) under the fruit of the poisonous tree doctrine. Wong Sun v. United States, 371 U.S. 471, 9 L.Ed.2d 441, 83 S.Ct. 407 (1963).

POINT II

WHETHER OR NOT THE POLICE OFFICERS HAD PROBABLE CAUSE TO ARREST RONALD KELLY, THE APPELLANT WAS SUBJECTED TO A CUSTODIAL INTERROGATION FROM THE TIME THE POLICE OBSERVED HIM AND ENTERED HIS RESIDENCE, AND ANY STATEMENTS HE MADE PRIOR TO BEING INFORMED OF HIS MIRANDA RIGHTS MUST BE SUPPRESSED.

Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436, 444 16 L.Ed.2d 684, 706, 84 S.Ct. 1602 (1966), mandated that as a constitutional prerequisite to any questioning, an individual held for interrogation by a law enforcement officer must be warned in clear and unequivocal terms of his right to remain silent. In State v. Ruggeri, 19 Utah 216, 429 P.2d 969 (1967), the Utah Supreme Court carried this farther and held that when an accused is detained in any significant way, he may not be interrogated unless he is advised of the charges against him. The Court defined "an accused" as "the target of an investigation." "To fail to so warn one so being investigated is

to entrap him and to violate his constitutional privilege against self-incrimination. A person cannot determine whether or not he needs counsel unless he was fully advised of the charges being considered against him." 429 P.2d at 973.

Under the Miranda rule, the decisive state of custodial interrogations is reached when there is questioning initiated by law enforcement officers after a person has been taken into custody or otherwise deprived of his freedom of action in any significant way (T.195,196).

Courts have expanded upon the objective definition of custodial interrogation as cited above, and they have expressly adopted the view that under the Miranda rule, a person is subjected to "custodial interrogation" not only if he is questioned when in custody or when deprived of his freedom of action in any significant way, but also if he is questioned when he reasonably believes that he is so deprived. People v. Arnold, 66 Cal.2d 438, 58 Cal.Rptr. 115, 426 P.2d 515 (1967); State v. Cole, 674 P.2d 119 (Utah 1983); People v. Hazel, 252 Cal.App.2d 412, 60 Cal.Rptr. 437 (1967); People v. White, 69 Cal.2d 751, 72 Cal.Rptr. 873, 446 P.2d 993 (1968); People v. Ellingsen, 258 Cal.App.2d 535, 67 Cal.Rptr. 744 (1968); Myers v. State, 2 Md.App. 534, 240 A.2d 288 (1968); People v. P., 21 N.Y.2d 1, 286 N.Y.S.2d 225, 233 N.E.2d 255 (1967); People v. Williams, 56 Misc.2d 837, 290 N.Y.S.2d 321 (1968).

The court in People v. Arnold, supra, while holding the Miranda rules inapplicable because the trial had taken place prior to the Miranda decision, adopted the Miranda definition of "custodial

interrogation." The Court stated that "custodial interrogation" occurs if the suspect is physically deprived of his freedom of action in any significant way or is led to believe, as a reasonable person that he is so deprived. Applying that definition, the Court held that the defendant might have reasonably believed that she had no alternative but to comply with a deputy district attorney's authoritative summoning for interrogation at his office. Similarly, the defendant may reasonably have believed that if she would have attempted to leave during the interrogation, she would have been detained. The Court, therefore, ruled statements made by the defendant on that occasion to be inadmissible.

In the case at bar, Mr. Kelly was summoned in the middle of the night to his door and informed by the police officer twice that he was investigating a homicide and had followed footprints from the scene of the crime to his house. Knowing that no one else was in his house, the defendant could reasonably conclude that he was a suspect in a homicide investigation and as such was not free to leave. This reasonable belief was compounded by two more officers entering, neither of whom asked permission but simply walked into his house (T. 196).

Interrogations of suspects at their own residences have been held to be "custodial interrogations" requiring Miranda warnings and guidelines in several cases.

In Orozco v. Texas, 394 U.S. 324, 22 L.Ed. 2d 311, 89 S.Ct. 1095 (1969), the Court emphasized the absolute necessity for officers interrogating people in custody to give the Miranda warnings. In

Orozco, supra, the defendant had been interrogated in his own bedroom by police officers. Rejecting the argument that the Miranda warnings were not applicable because the suspect had been interrogated in his own bedroom amidst familiar surroundings, the Court stressed the fact that the suspect was not free to leave, and was interrogated in the middle of the night. The Miranda opinion declared, the Court said, that the warnings were required where the person being interrogated was in custody or otherwise deprived of his freedom of action in any way.

Similarly the Court in Rosario v. Guam, 391 F.2d 869 (9th Cir. 1968), held that questioning by a civil commissioner of a suspect in his own house was "custodial interrogation" and Miranda applied. In Rosario, supra, the Court found that the commissioner had acted in his official capacity as a peace officer. The state contended that the questioning had been merely incidental to a social visit by the commissioner. The Court stated that it is not necessary for one to be handcuffed or even to be told that he is under arrest to be in custody. It is enough, the Court stated, that the suspect's freedom of movement, at the time of questioning, is restricted in a significant way by the presence of civil authority.

In State v. Anderson, 102 Ariz. 295, 428 P.2d 672 (1967) a deputy sheriff's failure to give Miranda warnings before interrogating the defendant in her own home was held to be improper. The Court noted that the suspect would not have been free to leave because "she was obviously the suspect of an apparent murder which the sheriff's office was investigating." The Court found the statements inadmissible and remanded the case for a new trial.

In People v. Glover, 52 Misc. 2d 520, 276 N.Y.S. 2d 461 (1966), the Court applied the test of "custodial interrogation" to a situation where police officers questioned the defendant at an apartment where the defendant was temporarily living with others. The police had reason to believe that the apartment was a base for "illegal narcotic trade." The Court stated that police questioning of a person, wherever detained, upon whom suspicion has already focused, is "custodial interrogation" under Miranda. The question was whether this was really a routine investigation or aimed at eliciting a confession or admission.

Another case is particularly similar to the case at bar. In Windsor v. United States, 389 F.2d 530 (5th Cir. 1968), two FBI agents had obtained from the defendant's accomplice facts as to how a crime had been committed and the defendant's involvement. The agents questioned the defendant in his motel room shortly thereafter. The FBI agents did not tell the defendant he was under arrest or that he was a suspect. At the conclusion of the questioning, the defendant was placed under arrest. The Court found that the focus of the investigation had clearly and unmistakably centered upon the defendant, and that, in effect he had been in custody or deprived of his freedom in a significant way. The statements made by the defendant were suppressed because the principles of Miranda "could not be so easily frustrated" by withholding from the defendant the fact that he was a suspect. There is no doubt that the defendant in this case was the focus of the homicide investigation. The Miranda decision, Miranda v. United States, supra, defined the focus test of Escobedo v. Illinois, 378 U.S. 478.

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