1984

The State of Utah v. Ronald Lemoyne Kelly : Brief of Respondent

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

thereafter appellant said "I want to level with you guys. I do know somebody at that house you talking about" (R. 4201). This statement was voluntary, it occurred within one and a half minutes after his Miranda rights were read and it was not in response to any question by an officer. From here, the conversation between appellant and Detective Farnsworth was a free dialogue devoid of any coercion or indices of interrogation. Indeed, appellant's quoted statement would be admissible in court without a Miranda warning and certainly serves as a proper waiver of Miranda rights after a warning. Miranda, 384 U.S. at 478.

POINT IV

THE STATEMENTS MADE AND EVIDENCE SEIZED SHOULD NOT BE SUPPRESSED UNDER THE FRUITS OF THE POISONOUS TREE DOCTRINE.

Appellant claims that all evidence seized and statements he made resulted from alleged unlawful acts of the police in violation of the Fourth and Fifth Amendments. Without reciting all of the arguments made in the previous three points, respondent asserts that this is not the case.

Appellant was properly informed of his Miranda rights. He freely chose to waive those rights, first by agreeing to answer questions selectively ("I don't know. It depends."), and second, by agreeing to "level" with the officers. This last full waiver was volunteered within a minute and a half after appellant was informed of his rights and indicated his understanding of them.

Appellant voluntarily identified his shoes, pants and gloves. No coercion was involved. Under Coolidge v. New

Hampshire, supra, the shoes and pants were not the product of a seizure; they were evidence voluntarily surrendered by appellant to Detective Farnsworth. The gloves were discovered in plain view during a lawful protective sweep search of appellant's house. None of this evidence is subject to the exclusionary rule.

Appellant attempts to apply the poisonous tree doctrine, Wong Sun v. United States, 371 U.S. 471 (1963), to statements made by appellant while he was being transported to the police station. That doctrine is not applicable here because appellant had already given a full waiver of his Miranda rights before he entered the police car. Furthermore, statements by appellant while in the car that were admitted at trial were not the product of interrogation; they were either assertions made or questions asked by appellant without Detective Farnsworth's prompting. Finally, appellant claims that evidence seized under the search warrants must be suppressed because the probable cause statement was based upon the allegedly illegally seized shoes. Respondent has already demonstrated in Point I that the shoes were either not seized at all, or were properly seized under the plain view exception.

Furthermore, appellant overlooks the fact that the probable cause statements also list footprints leading from the scene of the crime, the valid plain view discovery of the coat closely matching that worn by the suspect, and the fact that appellant was sole occupant of the house. These facts alone, without the shoes would give a cautious mind reasonable suspicion

to believe that useful evidence was in the house. Such a reasonable suspicion would be sufficient probable cause for issuance of a search warrant. United States v. Wiecking, 703 F.2d 408, 410 (9th Cir. 1983). The warrants in the present case are still valid even assuming, arguendo, that the shoes were improperly used as probable cause. Nor does the alleged fact that the officers did not correctly state the grounds for the search if, from an objective viewpoint, probable cause existed. White v. United States, 448 F.2d 250, 254 (1971), cert. denied, 405 U.S. 926 (1972). The above holds true even if the officers acted in bad faith, a claim that appellant does not make. Blair v. United States, 665 F.2d, 500, 506 (1981). The issuance of the search warrants in the present case was lawful, even granting appellant's spurious claim that the shoes could not serve as grounds for probable cause. Thus under any argument the evidence seized under the search warrants is not subject to the fruit of the poisonous tree doctrine. Wong Sun v. United States, supra.

POINT V

EVIDENCE SEIZED UNDER THE WARRANTS IS
EITHER ADMISSIBLE OR ITS ADMISSION
AT TRIAL WAS HARMLESS ERROR.

A. THE ALLEGED ILLEGAL ENTRY AND SEIZURE
OF APPELLANT'S HOME BY OFFICER BARNARDS
DOES NOT AFFECT THE ADMISSIBILITY OF
EVIDENCE OBTAINED UNDER THE SEARCH WARRANTS.

The crux of appellant's theory in Point VI of his brief is that the "impoundment" of his home by Officer Barnards was an illegal seizure of that home and all of its contents which could not be cured by issuance of valid search warrants. The cases cited for this principle by appellant, while valid law, are more

restrictive than recent United States Supreme Court cases and should not be adopted by this jurisdiction.

In Mincey v. Arizona, 437 U.S. 385 (1978), the Court reviewed a situation where a police guard was placed at the entrance of a residence to preserve the status quo while a search warrant was being sought. The Court approved this procedure even though "[T]here was no indication that evidence would be lost, destroyed, or removed during the time required to obtain a search warrant" Mincey, 437 U.S. at 394.

In Rawlings v. Kentucky, 448 U.S. 98 (1980), officers secured the home from within of a person for whom they had a valid arrest warrant. The officers detained all of the home's occupants while a search warrant was being obtained. The Court did not question the admissibility of evidence seized under the warrants. Rawlings, supra, at 106-10.

Finally, in Segura v. United States, ___ U.S. ___, 104 S.Ct. 3380 (1984), the Court found that the illegality of an initial entry and securing of a house from within has no effect upon the validity of a subsequent search based on a valid search warrant. Segura, 104 S.Ct. at 3382-83.

In Segura, supra, narcotics agents arrested the defendant under a valid warrant in the lobby of his apartment building. They then took defendant upstairs to his apartment where they were met by a third person. The agents entered the apartment without receiving or requesting permission. The agents conducted a limited security sweep of the apartment to insure that no one else was there who might destroy evidence. In the

process the agents discovered useful evidence in plain view, but disturbed none of it. Two agents remained behind in the defendant's apartment awaiting a warrant which was issued 19 hours after the agents' initial entry. Segura 104 S.Ct. at 3384. Numerous items were seized pursuant to the warrant.

The defendant claimed that all evidence seized under the warrant was tainted by the illegal initial entry and therefore should be suppressed. The Court accepted the lower court's determination that the entry was illegal, but said that the illegality of this entry did not affect the validity of the seizures under the warrants as long as the warrant was based on validity obtained probable cause. Segura, 104 S.Ct. at 3389-980.

In the present case, appellant does not contest the validity of Detective Farnsworth's entry. That entry, appellant concedes, was based upon appellant's consent. Furthermore, probable cause for the search warrants was based upon information legally obtained by Farnsworth; e.g., the prints noticed before the entry, and the coat and shoes legally viewed after the entry. All of this information was gained prior to or independently of Officers Martin's and Bernard's entry and the subsequent securing of appellant's home. The warrants were there based on legally obtained probable cause untainted by the complained of police actions. Under Segura, supra, that evidence is admissible and not subject to the exclusionary rule.

The subsequent entry by the video tape technician is of no consequence in the present dispute. No evidence was disturbed, and tapes were made only of the front room and the bedroom of appellant's home. The only reasonable purpose for

these tapes was to verify the location of evidence in appellant's house which might later be seized. The suppression of these tapes would be of no consequence because testimony at the suppression hearing verified that all evidence was seized from appellant's home.

Considering all of the above, the evidence seized under the warrants was admissible.

B. ASSUMING THE EVIDENCE GATHERED UNDER THE SEARCH WARRANTS SHOULD HAVE BEEN SUPPRESSED, IT WAS CUMULATIVE AND ITS SUPPRESSION WOULD HAVE NO EFFECT ON THE OUTCOME OF THE CASE.

Appellant claims that evidence gathered under the search warrants must be suppressed because that evidence was already illegally seized when Officer Bernard remained on the premises after appellant was taken to the police station. Granting, arguendo, appellant's claim, the suppression of the evidence gathered pursuant to the warrants would not result in reversal because that evidence was merely cumulative in effect.

Only one item of evidence seized pursuant to the warrants was introduced at trial; a shoelace covered with blood. Roy Tubergen, an F.B.I. expert on examining physical evidence for blood, determined that the blood on the shoelace was the same type as the victim's. However, Tubergen also located blood on the back of appellant's parka, on the cuff of his pants and on the instep of his right tennis shoe. The blood on the parka and the pants was consistent with the victim's blood. As has been shown, the parka, pants, and shoes were all lawfully obtained by the police by either voluntary surrender or warrantless seizure. Under these facts, the blood discovered on appellant's shoelace

is merely cumulative evidence and adds nothing new or of importance to the state's case. Furthermore, the other evidence is more than sufficient to support appellant's conviction See State v. Griffin, Utah, 626 P.2d 478 (1981). Therefore, since appellant's substantial rights were not affected by admission of the shoelace, the error, if any, should be disregarded. Rule 30, Utah Rules of Crim. Procedure.

POINT VI

THE SEIZURE OF EVIDENCE NOT LISTED IN THE SEARCH WARRANT HAS NO EFFECT UPON APPELLANT'S TRIAL BECAUSE THIS EVIDENCE WAS NOT INTRODUCED AT TRIAL.

Appellant complains of the seizure of certain items, specifically various purses, a toilet token, a red nipple stuffed with cotton, a bed sheet, a bed cover, a blue and white sweater, a red scarf with a knot and miscellaneous papers. Appellant presents a well reasoned argument citing many cases. Assuming the validity of this argument, it is unclear what the purpose of appellant's claim is, since none of the evidence complained of was introduced at trial. The only item introduced at trial and seized pursuant to the warrant was a shoelace. This shoelace was specifically mentioned in the affidavit for the warrant and in the warrant itself.

Appellant also notes that the wrong address appears on one warrant and that the correction gives no indication of when or by whom it was made. It should also be noted that there is no indication of who made the initial error in the address. However, the affidavit for the warrant does contain appellant's correct address. The mistaken address appears in the probable

cause statement at the end of the affidavit. It is apparent that the individual responsible for writing the affidavit Detective Abbott was aware of the correct address.

A description in a warrant of a place to be searched is constitutionally adequate if the officer executing the warrant can locate the place to be searched with reasonable effort.

A wrong address on the warrant will not in itself invalidate a warrant if an officer, through personal knowledge of the premise's address, is able to locate it. State v. Rood, 18 Wash. App. 740, 573 P.2d 1325 (1977). See also U.S. v. Avarello, 592 F.2d 1339, 1344 (5th Cir. 1979). In the present case, Detective Abbott wrote the affidavit containing the correct address and executed the warrant. (Suppression hearing transcript 459). He therefore had sufficient personal knowledge to locate appellant's house with reasonable effort.

Finally, appellant claims that the warrants were based on illegally seized articles. Respondent has previously demonstrated the error in this allegation. Nor is there anything in the affidavits from which the magistrate would necessarily infer that the articles were still in appellant's house.

Before a hearing reviewing the accuracy of an affidavit is required, appellant must make a "substantial preliminary showing that a false statement knowingly and intentionally, or with reckless disregard for the truth, was included by the affiant in the warrant affidavit." Franks v. Delaware, 438 U.S. 154, 155 (1978). Under Franks, supra, appellant's challenge to

the facial adequacy of the affidavit in the present case fails on several grounds. First, appellant has failed to show from the record that there was any intentional, knowing or reckless disregard of the truth by the affiant. Secondly none of the statements in the affidavit are false. Appellant's claims that the facts upon which the affidavit is based are either misleading or conclusory is itself conclusory and without support. The claim should be disregarded.

POINT VII

THE DISTRICT COURT'S REFUSAL TO DISMISS FOR FAILURE TO HOLD THE PRELIMINARY HEARING WITHIN TEN DAYS WAS BASED ON GOOD CAUSE SHOWN. MOREOVER, ASSUMING ARGUENDO, THAT THERE WAS ERROR, APPELLANT IS NOT ENTITLED TO THE RELIEF REQUESTED.

Prior to trial, appellant filed a motion on April 5, 1982, to dismiss the information based upon an alleged violation of his rights as expressed in Utah Code Ann. § 77-35-7(c) (Supp. 1981). This motion was denied. Appellant renewed the motion in District Court on December 7, 1982. The District Court, in denying the motion noted that the matter had already been ruled on by the Circuit Court and that it, the District Court, was not in a position to review that ruling (R. 363). In both the motions and the present appeal, appellant claims in essence that his statutory and constitutional right to a speedy trial was violated when the preliminary hearing was postponed, supposedly without good cause shown.

Two continuances were granted. The first was set for March 5, 1982. At that time the State moved to continue because evidence sent to the F.B.I. for analysis had not been returned

and the State needed the evidence in order to proceed with the hearing. Judge Gowans granted the motion and set the hearing for March 24, saying that this was good cause (R. 359). On March 23, Judge Jones' clerk reported that the judge had been assigned the hearing, that he was unavailable to hear the case the next day and that the hearing was continued on the Court's order until April 5 (R. 360). At that preliminary hearing the judge addressed the question of cause for the extension. He stated that unavailability of a judge for the hearing was good cause and that the continuance was properly granted (R. 360).

Notably, appellant stated at the District Court hearing that the State could refile if the information was dismissed (R. 362). Yet, on the present appeal, appellant asks for reversal of the judgment and dismissal of charges.

The continuances were indeed granted for good cause. The first continuance was granted because vital evidence was still in the F.B.I.'s possession. The absence of a material witness, where the State is not at fault, has been ruled good cause. State v. Goodmiller, 86 Idaho 233, 386 P.2d 365 (1963). A delay occasioned by the State's awaiting a laboratory report on evidence has been ruled good cause. State v. Anonymous, 29 Conn. Sup. 193, 218 A.2d 151 (1971).

In Morton v. Supreme Court, 411 P.2d 170 (Arizona 1966), a case cited by appellant, unavailability of a judge to preside over a preliminary hearing was said to be good cause for a continuance. Morton, 411 P.2d at 173. In State v. Moore, Utah, 521 P.2d 556 (1974), the decision granting continuance was

reversed because the State made no attempt to show good cause. Rather the State attempted to avoid making the showing by dismissing the complaint and then refileing. The State attempted no such subterfuge in the present case. Instead both continuances were based upon findings of good cause. Those findings should not be reversed unless the lower courts abused their discretion, a fact clearly not evident in the present case. People v. Ludviksa, 15 Cal. 3d 481, 87 Cal. Rptr. 182 (1971).

Even if the alleged error did occur, it would not be grounds for reversal of the trial court's judgment. Appellant admits that dismissal of the Information at the pretrial level would not have resulted in prejudice against the State. Refiling would always be a possibility and logically would have occurred in a case such as the present one. It follows that errors at the pretrial level which would not irreversibly deny the trial court jurisdiction should not be grounds for reversal of an otherwise valid conviction.

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